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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Thompson Block is located on the northwestern side of Middle 
Street in Portland, facing southeast toward Middle Street. It is bounded 
on the left (southwestern) side by Church Street and on the right (north­ 
eastern) side by Garden Street. When it was built there were wooden build­ 
ings behind it on the northwest, between it and Newbury Street. Today 
there is a parking lot there.

The Thompson *Block (built for a Mrs. Thompson) was designed by archi­ 
tect George M. Handing, who also designed the Woodman Block and the 
Rackleff Building which form the block immediately to the southwest of 
the Thompson Block. Started in 1867, the date it bears, it was completed 
in 1868. It is four stories high with the fourth story enclosed in a man­ 
sard roof, in the Second Empire or Mansard style. The first floor of the 
facade of the building is of aron, cast in Portland. The rest of the 
building is brick with freestone trim in two colors. The foundation is 
granite. The roof is gray slate, except on the facade where it is in 
bands of red and gray slate. The building is a trapezoid, its sides deter­ 
mined by the streets which form the block it occupies. It is eighty-five 
feet wide in front and ninety-five feet wide in the rear, and about eighty- 
five feet along the side.

V
The facade of the Thompson Block is complicated. The first floor is 

a continous arcade of cast iron supporting an iron entabulature which 
originally served as the location for store names 4 Six bays of the arcade 
are recessed glass doors; the remaining six have full length windows. On 
the second floor are six pairs of double arched windows with keystones 
and side rustication in two t«mes of freestone. On the third floor are 
four single windows and two paired windows with elaborate freestone arches 
and the same side rustication. On the fourth floor are six dormer windows 
with circular hoods. A double freestone stringcourse divides the facade 
at the third floor level.

The facade is treated as two corner towers of one bay each (the facade 
wraps around the sides of the building for one bay to complete these towers) 
and a wider center tower of two bays with single bays between. Bands of 
rustication in the two tones of freestone make the vertical divisions de­ 
lineating the towers. The three towers have elaborate overhanging cornices 
with freestone brackets. The mansard roofs of the towers are edged and 
project slightly. Those of the corner towers have bracketted cornices and 
were originally topped by iron work grills, giving them greater emphasis 
at the top.

The bays between the towers are also treated as vertic 
The paired windows at the third floor as well as the seco 
act as units. The plane of brick continues up to and aro, 
floor dormer windows, unbroken by a cornice.

A description comtemporary with the Thompson Block 

(See Continuation Sheet)
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7. DESCRIPTION

ornamentation of the building, most of which is visible today; each ornament 
was cut to represent part of an oak tree, as an indication of strength. The 
triangular inserts above the third floor double windows are carved with oak 
leaves and acorns. The carved patterns which alternate on the rustication 
blocks are made up of oak leaves. At the center of the third floor is a 
scroll which says "Thompson Bldg. 1867".

The sides of the Thompson Block are treated identically. All the detail 
on the sides is done with brick; and freestone is used. On the first floor 
is a continuous arcade of brick. Whole windows and fanlights, with arches 
punctuated by little keystones, alternate in the sunken panels between the 
columns. The windows at the second and third floors are the same size as 
those on the facade. They have patterned brick arches. There are no fourth 
floor windows. There are stringcourses of projecting brick at the second 
and third floor levels. The overhanging cornice continues around the build­ 
ing, but has only a few paired brackets.

The rear of the Thompson Block is divided in half, one half a mirror 
image of the other. A section of blank brick in the center separates five 
windows at either side on the first, second and third floors. All have 
double band brick arches. The two stringcourses of the sides continue 
across the rear, as does the cornice. Four fourth floor dormer windows with 
triangular gables line up over the interior windows on either side. Paired 
at the center of the first floor are two doors with wide granite lintels. 
The ten windows on the first floor are the only ones on the whole building 
with provision for shutters.

The Thompson Block has not been tampered with on the exterior. The 
freestone has remained unpainted. showing its original color, although it 
has suffered some deterioration. Changes from the original appearance of 
the building are the missing ironwork of the corner towers and the addition 
of modern signs on half the facade. The building was originally divided
in two stores, and it remains so divided today.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

%^ The Thompson Block and the Woodman Block and Rackleff Building, 
which comprise the block to the immediate southwest, are the most high 
style Victorian commercial buiJLdings erected in Maine. The three are 
extremely well designed buildings, the work of £eorge M. Hardjj^^ They 
are outstanding examples of the architecture of thTTrerToTT^ All have
been well preserved, the Thompson Block particularly.

The three buildings are similar in composition, but the detail on 
each is developed individually. The Thompson Block is a distinguished 
building. The facade is subtle, a delicate balance of horizontals and 
verticals. The five bays of the facade are similar enough to have each 
floor read continuously as a horizontal unit, but are modulated to give 
the facade texture. The corner towers are more emphatic verticals than 
the center tower because of their narrowness, three dimensionality, and 
originally their iron grillwork; yet they are balanced by the massiveness 
of the wider center tower. The two interior bays, sandwiched between the 
towers, act as verticals also, but recede because of their continuous 
flat planes of brick, forming a contrast to the towers.

George M. Harding practiced architecture in Portland for only a 
short period, from 1858 until 1873. After the Great Fire of 1866, he 
played a major role in rebuilding the business district.

Today, this handsome Victorian business district is rapidly being 
destroyed. Highways and modern office plazas have leveled whole sec­ 
tions of handsome brick structures. The buildings, so proudly erected 
by the rebuilding city in the 1860 's and 1870' s, which remain today on 
Exchange Market and Middle Street offer a rare environment - practically 
continuous Victorian streetscapes. These buildings are of a uniform 
material, brick, and employ architectural motifs of their period in 
infinite variety. The scale of these buildings relates to the pedestrian. 
The steady rhythm of the bays repeated i[n each facade makes it a pleasant 
experience to walk beside them. The buildings themselves are texturally 
exciting. Any further encroachment of parking lots, empty spaces and set­ 
back buildings will destroy this unique environment which makes this 
section of Portland so special.
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